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332 Daly Avenue (Garage), Park City, Summit County, Utah

Intensive Level Survey—Biographical and Historical Research Materials

Park Record, 7/1/1943

Park Record, 3/13/1958

StStevee DiesDie-
sIWord Was received yesterday that

a well known resident
of this city had passed away at the

of his sister lnIn Buhl Minnesota
Mr had lived huehere tOTfor a

number otof years working In the various
mines lIe was a prominent umember ofDr
Local 99 and was treasurer otof the local
lodge No S.S N.N P.P J.J Deceased was
born Inan J In 1891 and camecamo
to10 ttOOu United states In 1907
I

5S More Families
Leave Park City

We regret to report that Park
City lost five families during the
past week They were

Mr and Mrs EE. W.W Sexton who
moved their house onto a five
acre farm in Midway Mr Sexton
will work in Heber City

Mr and Mrs Joe Lopez and
family have closed their home in
Empire Canyon and have gone to
Wyoming where Mr Lopez has
been working for ssomeme Umetime

Mr and Mrs John TT.
have gone tot-o Salt Lake City
where he will be a custodian at a
Salt Lake high school

Junior NeilNell and family willwUl
make a home in SaltSatt Lake City
nearer his work in Tooele

Mr and Mrs Howard Chad-
wick

Chad-
wick

ChadChad-
wick and family have gone to
Wyoming where Mr Chadwick
will work in the uranium fieldsnelda

We are sorry to lose all these
good citizens even temporarily
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Historic Preservation Board 

Staff Report 
t  
 
 
Author:  Anya Grahn, Historic Preservation Planner 
Subject:   Material Deconstruction and Reconstruction Review 
Address:   243 Daly Avenue  
Project Number: PL-16-03172 
Date:                   May 3, 2017 
Type of Item: Administrative – Material Deconstruction and Reconstruction  
 
 
Summary Recommendation:  
Staff recommends the Historic Preservation Board review and discuss the application, 
conduct a public hearing, and approve the material deconstruction of non-historic and 
non-contributory materials at 243 Daly Avenue pursuant to the following findings of fact, 
conclusions of law, and conditions of approval. This site is listed as Landmark on the 
City’s Historic Sites Inventory (HSI).   
 
Topic: 
Address:  243 Daly Avenue 
Designation: Landmark 
Applicant:          Alexander and Elizabeth Cohen (represented by Architect Chimso 

Onwuegbu) 
Proposal:  Material Deconstruction of c.1998 front yard landscaping consisting of 

gathered rocks and backyard retaining walls; shed-roof addition across 
the east (rear) elevation of the historic hall-parlor form and a poured 
concrete root cellar/mechanical room; post-1941 shed roof structure 
constructed on top of the original gable roof; original soffit and fascia; 
c.1996 porch railings, posts, and roofs; historic door opening on the 
west façade; historic and non-historic windows. 

  
Background: 
On January 12, 2017, the Planning Department received a Historic District Design 
Review (HDDR) application for the property at 243 Daly Avenue.  The application was 
deemed complete on February 6, 2017 and we have been working through design 
issues and preservation methods to this point.  The Historic District Design Review 
(HDDR) application has not yet been approved, as it is dependent on HPB’s Review for 
Material Deconstruction approval.  
 
The property is located at 243 Daly Avenue on a developed lot.  The site is designated 
as Landmark on the City’s Historic Sites Inventory (HSI) (See Historic Site Form).   
 
Both a Plat Amendment and a Steep Slope Conditional Use Permit (SS-CUP) are 
required prior to issuance of a building permit for this project.  A plat amendment 
application was submitted on February 8, 2017, and has not yet been deemed 

Planning Department 
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complete.  The SS-CUP has not yet been submitted, but the applicant understands it is 
a requirement for moving forward with construction of an addition. 
 
History of Development on this Site 
Early on, the Ontario Mining Company owned much of the property along Daly Avenue.  
In 1889, they constructed the Union Concentrator mill on the west side of Daly Avenue 
(See 1889 Sanborn Map).  The concentrator processed some 100 tons of ore per day.  
By 1900, the Union Concentrator had become obsolete due to the number of 
concentrators that had been constructed in Park City and the concentrator was 
demolished.  Nevertheless, the Ontario Mining Company continued to retain ownership 
of many of the parcels on Daly Avenue and rented out houses constructed on their 
property, including the house at 243 Daly Avenue. 
 

 
1889 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map.  The red 

circle shows the location of the Union 
Concentrator. The blue circle shows the location 

of 243 Daly Avenue. 
 
Residential areas, such as that in Daly Canyon, first developed closest to the mines and 
in areas adjacent to Main Street.  The house at 243 Daly Avenue first appears in the 
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1889 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map as one-story wood frame hall-parlor structure with a 
full-width front porch and a square addition off the southeast (rear) corner of the 
building.  Hall-parlors are generally rectangular in shape, yet the main form of the house 
in 1889 was squarer.  Staff finds that the house likely had an earlier rear addition that 
already had expanded the original rectangle into a square.   
 
By 1900, the square addition had been removed and the rear half of the building was 
extended north.  A portion of the creek had been covered and a one-story garage had 
been constructed with the address of 20 ½ Daly Avenue. It was not uncommon for 
cottage industries to operate out of Daly Avenue’s garages at the height of the mining 
boom. 
 

 
 
By 1907, the house had expanded again and the overall form remains the same on the 
1941 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map.  A second rear addition was constructed on the 
northeast (rear) corner of the house by 1907.   
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Staff finds that the 1941 Sanborn Fire Insurance map does not exactly match the c.1941 
tax photograph.  By the time of the photograph, the house had been modified again with 
a gable ell was added to the west façade in order to create a cross-wing.   
 

  
 
The two-room rectangular cabin was the smallest of Park City’s house types 
constructed during the settlement period.  These structures usually consisted of roughly 
370 to 650 square feet.  Based on physical evidence, the original two-room cabin 
appears to have measured roughly 12 feet by 22 feet and contained about 264 square 
feet.  It appears that early on this house was expanded into a four-room double-pile plan 
to increase the square footage, which likely also created a salt box shape. 
 
T-shaped cottages became a predominant house form in the 1880s and 1890s.  
Because of their popularity, many existing single- and two-room cabins were expanded 
to create the T-shape.  This trend to expand into a T-shape was popular, and, based on 
photographic evidence we know that a gabled stem-wing was added to 243 Daly 
Avenue before the c.1941 tax photograph.  Typically, a stem-wing would be added to 
the side of the original hall-parlor to create the T-shaped cottage; however, at 243 Daly 
Avenue, the stem was actually added to the front of the house.    
 
The first recorded resident of the house was documented by the 1930 census.  Katie 
Rubick (sometimes “Rubich”) was born in Yugoslavia in 1877.  She married Nickolas 
Frkovich in 1904 and they immigrated to the U.S. in 1910.  After his death in 1915, she 
married George Rubick in Park City in 1916.  He died four years later.  Widowed, Katie 
lived in this house for much of her life alone.  She had four children.  She died in Murray 
in 1975 at the age of 97. 
 
The ownership of this house was first transferred to an individual in 1980 when the 
Royal Street Land Co. transferred it to John E. and Leola Fritch; John was Katie’s son.  
In 1986, the property was transferred to Lucy Rubick, John’s sister.  Lucy owned and 
lived in the property until 1993.   
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Following 1993, the property changed hands several times.  Lucy Rubick sold the 
property to George S. Malouf, Jr. in 1993. George sold the property to Michael G. 
Malouf in 1994.  Ten years later, Michael G. Malouf sold the property to E. Mosher & 
J.R. Pettit.  They sold the property to the current owners in 2013.   
 
The following elevations follow the pattern of development of the house: 
 

 
Progression of Development: 

1. The lime green shaded areas show the original hall-parlor house constructed 
before 1889.  These areas are historic. 

2. The darker green shaded areas are the addition that created the cross-wing 
between 1927 and 1941.  These areas are historic. 

3. The orange shaded area is the shed addition to the northeast corner.  The 
construction materials of this section are contemporary; however, the overall form 
and location of the shed addition is consistent with that seen in the historic 
photograph. 

4. The red shaded areas show the improvements made after 1941: building a new 
sloped roof form over the original roof form of the façade, constructing an exterior 
staircase and extending the porch to the north side of the projecting ell, rear 
additions, new concrete basement foundation, etc. 

 
Many of the modifications made to the property after 1941 occurred under the 
ownership of the Rubicks and subsequent owners.  By 1968, Mrs. Rubick had replaced 
the original wood shingles seen in the tax photograph with a new metal roof.  In 1995, 
Michael G. Malouf submitted a demolition permit for the garage.  The following year, he 
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began work on a new concrete foundation.  By 1998, the permit for the new foundation 
included an exterior staircase shielded by an extension of the original porch roof; this 
project was completed in 1999.   
 
What is interesting about the basement foundation plans is that it does not show the 
rear shed addition that is seen in the c.1941 tax photograph.  Based on physical 
evidence found on site, the architect believes the rear additions on the house are not 
historic as they are constructed of contemporary building materials.  Based on the 
structural engineer’s analysis and photographs of this addition, staff believes it may 
have been constructed after the c.1941 tax photograph and replaced an earlier rear 
addition as it mimics the same footprint seen in the Sanborn maps. 
 

  
 1998 Building Permit Plans 

1. Shows the area where the side 
addition should appear. 

2. Is the non-historic addition off the 
rear elevation that exists today. 

2009 Photograph of the House. 
The area clouded as 1 is the rear 
addition.  A similar shed addition appears 
in the c.1941 tax card, but it is unclear 
whether or not this is the same addition. 

 
On January 12, 2017, the applicant submitted a Historic District Design Review (HDDR) 
application to renovate the existing house and construct a new rear addition.  Prior to 
issuance of a building permit to construct the new addition, the applicant will need the 
Planning Commission to approve a Steep Slope Conditional Use Permit (SS-CUP) and 
record a plat amendment to create a legal lot of record. 
 
Material Deconstruction 
Staff has analyzed the specific scope of work for the material deconstruction below: 

 

1. SITE DESIGN 
Much of the existing site design was introduced in 1998 for the planned (and 
subsequently abandoned) remodel of the home.  The existing front yard landscaping 
is limited to a small area of gathered rocks on the side of the property and the 
majority of the front yard is a gravel driveway.  In 1998, twenty-two feet (22’) of the 
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hillside was excavated behind the existing structure and re-graded in anticipation of 
the remodel.  Much of the hillside has settled and is now being held back by the 
concrete addition on the back of the house and a non-historic railroad tie retaining 
wall. 

 
The applicant is proposing to excavate this area further in order to construct a new 
addition to the historic house.  The addition will require Planning Commission 
approval of a Steep Slope Conditional Use Permit (SS-CUP) due to the steepness of 
the grade directly behind the house.    
 
There are minimal modifications to the yard.  The driveway will be reduced to twelve 
feet (12’) in width and paved in order to create a parking pad that complies with the 
Design Guidelines and the Land Management Code (LMC).  New vegetation will be 
provided to landscape the site.  Staff finds that the proposed scope of work is routine 
maintenance of the yard and does not require HPB review.   
 

 
2. REMOVAL OF ADDITIONS 

The applicants are proposing to remove the additions on the rear elevation of the 
historic house.  These additions are described in more detail below: 
 
Addition #1 (shaded in red) is largely a shed-roof addition across the width of the 
rear (east) elevation of the historic house.  It is unclear whether this addition is 
historic or if it is a new addition that uses the footprint of an original, historic addition; 
however, based on the photographs provided by the applicant and the observations 
noted by the structural engineer, staff finds that this was probably a later addition 
constructed after 1941 and that perhaps replaced an earlier addition. 
 
This addition has wood siding on the west (façade) and south (side) elevations; 
however, the back of the addition is clad in horizontal, corrugated metal panels. The 
hillside has settled and the wall is partially buried underground.  The roof over this 
area has been built over, typical of Park City construction, indicating that there may 
have had a shallower roof pitch at one point and the new roof was constructed to 
eliminate two different roof pitches.   
 
Addition #2 (shaded in blue) is a rough-poured concrete box that sits directly on a 
wood floor on the ground. This may have initially been constructed as an ice box 
and/or used as mechanical space.  The shed roof ties into the first addition on the 
house.  Staff finds that this addition was probably constructed before 1930 when root 
cellars were popular.  In the past, the HPB has determined that root cellars are not 
historically significant. 
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In these plan and elevation drawings, the first addition is shaded in red.  The second 
addition—the concrete ice box/mechanical room—is shaded in blue.   
 
 

The following photographs depict these additions and the multiple materials used to 
construct them.   
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This c.1941 historic photograph shows a 
shed-roof addition that extends from the 
rear (east) elevation of the house to the 
north. It appears in this photograph that 
the wrap-around porch terminates at this 

addition on the north side. 

 

This photograph shows the location of 
Addition 1.  On the west (façade) 

elevation, it is clad in wood siding and 
appears largely identical to the addition 

shown in the c.1941 tax photograph. 

 
 

This photograph taken from the 
southeast corner of the site shows the 

rough-poured concrete root cellar/ 
mechanical room (Addition #2).  Also 

note the corrugated metal siding on the 
east (rear) wall of Addition #1. 
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This photograph of the south (side) 
elevation shows the transition from 
historic drop-novelty wood siding to 

plywood.  The gable is original to the 
cross-wing house and the projecting ell 
is nearest to photographer.  Note the 

plywood material on the shed addition to 
the rear. 

 
HPB Discussion Requested. 
 
The HPB may find that the additions to the Historic Building are non-contributory to 
the historic integrity or historical significance of the structure or site and may be 
removed.  (This has been included as Finding of Fact #9 for the HPB’s 
convenience.)    
The HPB may also find that the additions to the Historic Building are historically 
significant and may not be removed.  If that is the case, the HPB should condition 
this material deconstruction to require that the applicant maintain and reconstruct 
the shed-roof addition and/or concrete root cellar as necessary. 

 
3. ROOF 

The roof structure consists of 2x4 trusses with 1x8 collar ties at 24” on center.  There 
is an overbuild on the west side of the roof beginning at the ridge and continuing 
down to the edge of the porch which is not historic.   This main roof form is 
undersized and will require additional stabilization to ensure it complies with current 
IBC requirements.  The porch roof is failing due to the additional weight of the roof 
overbuild and will need to be reinforced. 

 
During the c.1996 renovation, a second east-west porch roof was improperly 
constructed to cover the new exterior stairs to the basement.  Because of its weak 
connection to the main roof form, it is now failing due to the stress of both the 
historic structure and the supporting columns.  Snow and ice buildup have added 
weight to this structure and caused additional deterioration.   
 
The roof structure has been covered with metal roofing in different profiles, including 
flat and corrugated metal sheeting as well as bent flashing.  There are no gutters or 
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downspouts and the original soffits are exposed to the elements, which has caused 
further deterioration. 
 
The applicant believes that the original roof structure is in place beneath the 
overbuild and is in good condition.  The applicant finds that the original roof structure 
is structurally undersized and the main gables of the roof will require further 
structural upgrades.  This has been confirmed by the structural engineer’s report as 
well (Exhibit E).  
 

 
This drawing of the North Elevation shows the overbuild of the roof structure.  The 
original roof (highlighted in red) consisted of a gable with wrap-around porch.  
Sometime after the c.1941 tax photograph, a new shed roof was constructed over 
the original gable and porch roof to create the overbuild. 
 
 
Staff finds that the roof may be able to be reinforced from the interior once the 
additional strain of the overbuilds have been removed. This would preserve the 
original materials and prevent the entire roof form from having to be reconstructed; 
however, staff also recognizes that additional work may be required due to the poor 
condition of the original roof form.  For that reason, staff has added the following 
Conditions of Approval: 
 

#2.  The applicant shall maintain the original gabled roof form including its 
original dimension, pitch, and height.  Structural stabilization shall occur by 
adding new structural members to the interior of the roof.   

 
#3.  Should restructuring the roof from the interior not be possible due to the 
condition of the existing roof structure, the applicant shall schedule a site visit 
with the Chief Building Official and Planning Director to evaluate the condition of 
the roof structure.  The applicant shall also submit a structural engineer’s report 
to the Planning Director outlining the defects in the roof that prevent the new 
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structure from being added alongside the existing roof members.  The Physical 
Conditions Report and Preservation Plan shall be amended to document the 
condition of these walls and provide an updated scope of work to the 
satisfaction of the Planning Department.  Any changes, modifications, or 
deviations from the approved scope of work shall be reviewed and approved by 
the Planning Director in writing prior to construction.  
 

The proposed material deconstruction is necessary to restore the original roof form. 
 

4. EXTERIOR WALLS 
Original L-shaped structure was stabilized and set on a new concrete foundation 
c.1996.  It has 2x4 wood framed walls and a 2x8 framed floor set on the concrete 
walls.  The walls are sided in 1x6 drop-novelty siding painted white.  The siding is in 
fair shade though the reinstallation of the walls over the c.1996 foundation has left 
the exterior walls unleveled in some locations.   
 
The applicant is proposing to make minor repairs to the exterior walls.  Maintenance 
is required to address damaged wood siding on the north and west walls.  The south 
wall is in overall good shape.  The east wall is currently an interior wall of the house.  
It will be returned to an exterior wall if the additions are removed and the exterior will 
be resided with wood siding milled to match the historic drop novelty siding.   
 
The trim work on the exterior walls is largely in poor condition.  The soffits and fascia 
are deficient and suffering from deterioration.  Staff has added Condition of Approval 
4 to address these issues: 
 

 4. Where the historic exterior materials cannot be repaired, they will be replaced 
with materials that match the original in all respects: scale, dimension, texture, 
profile, material and finish.  Prior to replacement, the applicant shall demonstrate 
to the Planning Director that the materials are no longer safe and/or serviceable 
and cannot be repaired to a safe and/or serviceable condition.  The Planning 
Director shall approve the replacement in writing. 
 

Staff finds that the proposed material deconstruction is necessary for the restoration 
of the historic house.  The proposed scope of work mitigates any impact that will 
occur to the historical significance of the building as its intent is to restore the original 
woodwork.   
 

5. FOUNDATION 
As previously discussed, a new foundation was added to this house in c.1996.  
There is no basement beneath the rear additions of the house.  The applicant 
proposes only to remedy the water leaks that have occurred at the joints of the 
concrete walls and slab of the new foundation. 
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Staff finds that the proposed scope of work is routine maintenance and does not 
require HPB review. 

 
6. PORCH 

Existing porch floor is the new c.1996 concrete floor over the basement; it likely 
replaced an original wood deck.  The porch posts are consistent in their location to 
those seen historically, however, overloading on the roof has caused them to be 
structurally unsound and require replacement. The porch railing consists of vertical 
2x2 picket railing, but only around the non-historic c.1996 exterior basement stairs 
and north elevation of the wrap-around porch.   The original porch roof has been 
modified; the original slope of the roof was built over with a new roof that extends 
from the top of the original ridgeline to the outside of the porch.  The ceiling of the 
porch has been modified and covers the original open ceiling of the porch; these 
later additions have settled and are at varying slopes.   

 

 
The roof structure will be reinforced and returned to its original form by removing 
overbuilt which exists over the original slope.  The applicant proposes to remove 
structure added beneath the porch ceiling.  The non-historic roof over the existing 
stairs will also be rebuilt to correctly tie into the reconstructed historic roof and 
correct drainage at the intersection with the historic porch. New railings will wrap the 
basement stairs.  The historic porch will be reconstructed with new posts. 
 
Staff finds that the proposed material deconstruction is required for the restoration 
of the original porch.  Years of alterations have caused the materials to be replaced 
over time and settle at different rates.  The introduction of an exterior basement stair 
in 1996 required an extension of the porch to protect the stairs from the elements.  
As the current owner is not proposing to modify the foundation, staff finds that 
reconstructing the porch roofs in a shed configuration is appropriate to maintaining 
the look and feel of the original porch structure.   
 
Staff finds that the proposed material deconstruction is necessary for the restoration 
of the original porch. 

  
In this image, the original porch location is highlighted in red.  A roof has been constructed over it, 
covering the original shed roof (shaded orange).  The roof was extended across the north 
elevation and onto the side of the historic ell addition to cover stairs leading to the basement; this 
was constructed c.1996 and is highlighted in blue.   
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7. DOORS 
The applicant is proposing to remove the historic door on the front façade.  The door 
is not a standard height and the frame has warped.  The applicant has requested 
that they be able to expand the door opening to install a new IBC-compliant door. 
The original door opening is shaded in red below: 
   

 
 
In the past, the HPB has been consistent about enforcing Specific Design Guideline 
B.4.1 which requires that historic door openings, doors, and door surrounds are 
maintained.  Staff has added Condition of Approval #5 to address this issue: 
 

#5.  The applicant shall maintain the dimensions of the extant historic door 
openings.  The new door shall be consistent with historic door styles.  

 
Staff finds that the proposed exterior changes will not damage or destroy the exterior 
architectural features of the subject property which are compatible with the character 
of the historic site.  

 
8. WINDOWS 

The existing windows are in poor condition and were added at multiple times.  The 
frames are warped, the tracks don’t allow for operation, the hardware is failing, and 
many were installed poorly to begin with.  The applicant is proposing to replace the 
existing windows with new windows that match the historic window opening sizes.  
American Heritage Window Rebuilders has assessed the windows and found they 
are beyond repair (see Exhibit  F). On the south elevation, windows have been 
covered and replaced with new sliding windows; the applicant is proposing to restore 
these original window openings.  Staff has highlighted the original windows to be 
replaced in red and the original window openings to be restored in blue: 
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Staff finds that the proposed material deconstruction is necessary in order to restore 
and rehabilitate the house.  Staff has added the following Conditions of Approval to 
ensure that the replacement windows will not detract from the architectural integrity 
of this structure: 
 

#6.  Historic window openings shall be maintained where existing and restored 
where they have been lost.  The applicant shall replace the historic windows 
with new wood windows that match originals in all respects: size, dimensions, 
glazing pattern, depth, profile, and wood material.  Special consideration shall 
be taken to ensure historic trim that has deteriorated beyond repair is accurately 
reconstructed around the new window units. 

 
Staff finds that the proposed material deconstruction is necessary in order to restore 
the original window configuration and the proposed exterior change will not damage 
or destroy the exterior architectural features of the subject property that are 
compatible with the character of the historic site. 
 

Recommendation: 
Staff recommends the Historic Preservation Board review and discuss the application, 
conduct a public hearing, and approve the material deconstruction of non-historic and 
non-contributory materials at 243 Daly Avenue pursuant to the following findings of fact, 
conclusions of law, and conditions of approval. This site is listed as Landmark on the 
City’s Historic Sites Inventory (HSI).   
 
Finding of Fact: 
1. The property is located at 243 Daly Avenue. 
2. The site is designated as Landmark on the Historic Sites Inventory.  
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3. Based on Sanborn Fire Insurance maps and historic research analysis, the house 
was constructed prior to 1889 on land owned by the Ontario Mining Company.  It 
was initially constructed as a one-story wood frame hall-parlor with a full-width front 
porch and rear additions, including a square addition off the back.  By 1900, a rear 
addition as expanded north to create a bump out on the northeast corner of the 
house. This addition appears to have been extended to the east again by 1907.   

4. By the time of the c.1941 tax photograph, a gabled stem-wing had been added to 
the front of the hall-parlor to create a T-shaped cross-wing house.  The T-shaped 
cottages became a popular house form in the 1880s and 1890s and many hall-
parlors were expanded by creating the cross-wing form. 

5. The first recorded resident of this house was a Yugoslavian immigrant and widow 
named Katie Rubbick who lived in the house for much of her life alone.  The 
ownership of the property first transferred from the Royal Street Land Co. To John E. 
Fritch in 1980; John was Katie Rubbick’s son.  Many of the improvements to the 
property occurred under the Rubbicks’ ownership. 

6. Between 1995 and 1998, Michael G. Malouf demolished the historic garage along 
Daly Avenue, constructed a foundation, and renovated the house for the first time.   

7. On January 12, 2017, the Planning Department received a Historic District Design 
Review (HDDR) application for the renovation of the historic house and construction 
of a new addition at 243 Daly Avenue; the application was deemed complete on 
February 6, 2017.  The HDDR application is still under review by the Planning 
Department. 

8. The applicant proposes to remove existing front yard landscaping, likely constructed 
c.1998, and a non-historic railroad tie retaining wall.  The applicant will also 
construct an LMC-compliant driveway in the front yard.  The proposed work is 
routine maintenance and does not require HPB review.   

9. The applicant proposes to remove a shed-roof addition that extends along the east 
(rear) wall of the original hall-parlor structure as well as a poured concrete root 
cellar/mechanical room on the east (rear) elevation of the house.  These additions 
are clad in horizontal, corrugated metal panels and partially retain the hillside.  The 
HPB finds that these additions do not contribute to the historic integrity or historical 
significance of the structure or site and may be removed. 

10.  The roof structure consists of 2x4 trusses with 1x8 collar ties at 24” on center.  
Sometime after 1941, the original gable of the house and hip roof of the porch were 
covered with a new shed roof that created an overbuild and changed the 
appearance of the original roof form.  Additionally, the porch roof was extended on 
the north elevation of the stem-wing in order to cover exterior basement stairs that 
were constructed as part of the c.1996 renovation.  The applicant is proposing to 
reinforce the roof structure from the interior and remove the non-historic overbuild 
that is causing structural deficiencies of the original roof form. The material 
deconstruction is necessary in order to restore the original roof form. 

11. The historic walls were largely stabilized from the interior of the house during the 
c.1996 renovation.  The new foundation has left the exterior walls unleveled in some 
locations.  The soffits and fascia are in poor condition.   The applicant is proposing to 
make minor repairs. The proposed material deconstruction is necessary for the 
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restoration of the historic house.  The proposed scope of work mitigates any impact 
that will occur to the historical significance of the building as its intent is to restore 
the original woodwork. 

12. The foundation was constructed c.1996.  The proposed scope of work to address 
any leaks at the joints of the concrete foundation is routine maintenance and does 
not require HPB review. 

13. The original porch has largely been rebuilt over time.  The existing porch floor is the 
new c.1996 concrete floor over the basement.  The porch posts are consistent with 
what existed historically; however, overloading on the roof has caused them to be 
structurally unsound.  The porch railing consists of 2x2 picket railing, but only exists 
on the non-historic c.1996 exterior basement stairs, a window well on the east 
façade and the north elevation of the wrap-around porch.  The ceiling of the porch 
has been covered with new material that is settling at different rates.  The roof 
structure will be reinforced and returned to its original form by removing the overbuilt 
which exists over its original slope.  The applicant will also reconstruct the non-
historic c.1996 porch roof on the north side of the stem-wing in order to correct 
structural deficiencies that have created an ice dam.  The material deconstruction is 
necessary for the restoration of the original porch. 

14.  The applicant is proposing to remove the existing front door and replace it with a 
new historically compatible door.  The proposed exterior changes will not damage or 
destroy the exterior architectural features of the subject property that are compatible 
with the character of the historic site. 

15. The windows on the historic house are in poor condition.  The majority are original 
but two windows have been covered and one replaced with a sliding window.  The 
applicant is proposing to restore lost window openings and replace the existing 
windows with new wood windows. The proposed material deconstruction is 
necessary in order to restore the original window configuration and the proposed 
exterior change will not damage or destroy the exterior architectural features of the 
subject property that are compatible with the character of the historic site. 

 
Conclusions of Law: 
1. The proposal complies with the Land Management Code requirements pursuant to 

the HR-1 District and regarding historic structure deconstruction and reconstruction. 
 
Conditions of Approval: 
1. Final building plans and construction details shall reflect substantial compliance with 

the HDDR proposal stamped in on October 14, 2016. Any changes, modifications, or 
deviations from the approved design that have not been approved by the Planning 
and Building Departments may result in a stop work order.    

2. The applicant shall maintain the original gabled roof form including its original 
dimension, pitch, and height.  Structural stabilization shall occur by adding new 
structural members to the interior of the roof.   

3. Should restructuring the roof from the interior not be possible due to the condition of 
the existing roof structure, the applicant shall schedule a site visit with the Chief 
Building Official and Planning Director to evaluate the condition of the roof structure.  
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The applicant shall also submit a structural engineer’s report to the Planning Director 
outlining the defects in the roof that prevent the new structure from being added 
alongside the existing roof members.  The Physical Conditions Report and 
Preservation Plan shall be amended to document the condition of these walls and 
provide an updated scope of work to the satisfaction of the Planning Department.  
Any changes, modifications, or deviations from the approved scope of work shall be 
reviewed and approved by the Planning Director in writing prior to construction. 

4. Where the historic exterior materials cannot be repaired, they will be replaced with 
materials that match the original in all respects: scale, dimension, texture, profile, 
material and finish.  Prior to replacement, the applicant shall demonstrate to the 
Planning Director that the materials are no longer safe and/or serviceable and 
cannot be repaired to a safe and/or serviceable condition.  The Planning Director 
shall approve the replacement in writing. 

5. The applicant shall maintain the dimensions of the extant historic door openings.  
The new door shall be consistent with historic door styles.  

6. Historic window openings shall be maintained where existing and restored where 
they have been lost.  The applicant shall replace the historic windows with new wood 
windows that match originals in all respects: size, dimensions, glazing pattern, 
depth, profile, and wood material.  Special consideration shall be taken to ensure 
historic trim that has deteriorated beyond repair is accurately reconstructed around 
the new window units. 

 
 
Exhibits: 
Exhibit A – HPB Checklist for Material Deconstruction 
Exhibit B – Plans 
Exhibit C – Physical Conditions Report  
Exhibit D – Historic Preservation Plan 
Exhibit E – Structural Engineering Report  
Exhibit F – Email from American Heritage Rebuilders  
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Exhibit A  

 
 

Historic Preservation Board Material Deconstruction Review Checklist: 
1. Routine Maintenance (including repair or replacement where there is no 

change in the design, materials, or general appearance of the elements 
of the structure or grounds) does not require Historic Preservation Board 
Review (HPBR).   

2. The material deconstruction is required for the renovation, restoration, or 
rehabilitation of the building, structure, or object. 

3. Proposed exterior changes shall not damage or destroy the exterior 
architectural features of the subject property which are compatible with 
the character of the historic site and are not included in the proposed 
scope of work. 

4. The proposed scope of work mitigates any impacts that will occur to the 
visual character of the neighborhood where material deconstruction is 
proposed to occur; any impacts that will occur to the historical 
significance of the buildings, structures, or objects located on the 
property; any impact that will occur to the architectural integrity of the 
buildings, structures, or objects located on the property; and any impact 
that will compromise the structural stability of the historic building. 

5. The proposed scope of work mitigates to the greatest extent practical any 
impact to the historical importance of other structures located on the 
property and on adjacent parcels. 

6. Any addition to a Historic Building, Site, or Structure has been found to be 
non-contributory to the historic integrity or historical significance of the 
structure or site.    
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Las Vegas 

Irvine 

Phoenix 

Salt Lake 

Tucson 

9160 S. 300 W. 
Suite 2 

Sandy, UT 84070 

801.352.2001 

wrightengineers.com 

April 13, 2017 

WOW atelier 
17 E 400 South 
Salt Lake City, UT 84111 
Attention:  Chimso Onwuegbu 

Subject: Cohen Residence Remodel 
Re-Roof Existing Structure 

Dear Chimso: 

On Wednesday July 27, 2016, a representative from our office visited the residence located at 243 Daly 
Avenue in Park City, UT.  The purpose of the visit was to observe the existing roof structure to determine the 
extent of required upgrades that would need to be included during a reroofing project that was to occur on 
the existing structure.  The following is a description of what was observed in the existing roof structure that 
was accessible at the time of the visit. 

The existing roof was constructed of 2x6 rafters with a maximum spacing of 24” on center.  The rafters were 
tied together with a 1x8 collar tie, no ridge beam was observed in the structure’s roof.  The existing 
diaphragm consisted of an approximately 3/4” thick T&G system over the top of the existing 2x6 rafters.  The 
ceiling joists were observed to be 2x6 boards at the same spacing of the existing rafters.  Overall the 
existing roof structure appeared to be in good condition without any visible sign of decay or damage. 

At the back of the house, a newer expansion to the existing house was constructed with a shed roof that 
was overbuilt on top of the existing 2x6 rafters.  This was evident due to the fact that the original wood 
shingles were observed on the back side of the original sloped roof underneath the overbuilt shed roof. 

Additionally, the entire roof was covered with a metal roofing material that was installed directly over the 
original wood shingles.  This was observed in the attic space and also along the eaves where the rafter tails 
were exposed and the original wood shingles were visible, sandwiched between the metal roofing and T&G 
decking on top of the 2x6 rafters. 

The existing porch framing could not be easily verified as the underside of the porch roof was covered by a 
solid wood board soffit.  Without knowing the exact configuration and sizes of the framing members, a 
minimum size of framing members and porch roof layout was specified on the construction documents 
stamped and signed on August 24, 2016. 

A reroof of the existing structure requires that all the existing metal roofing, original wood shingles and T&G 
decking be removed from the existing rafters.  The existing rafters were permitted to remain in place, 
however, calculations provided with the construction documents, stamped and signed on August 24, 2016, 
showed that new 2x6 rafters and collar ties were required to be sistered to the existing rafters to reinforce 
the structure.  Additionally, new 3/4” plywood per the framing plan notes and general structural notes 
contained in the construction documents is required to be installed. 

Please contact our office should you have any further questions regarding this matter. 

Best regards, 

WRIGHT ENGINEERS 

Kirk Winegar 
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Anya Grahn

From: Chimso Onwuegbu <chimso@be-wow.com>
Sent: Wednesday, April 19, 2017 7:31 PM
To: Anya Grahn
Subject: Fwd: Window replication recommendation

See email below from American Heritage Windows regarding the Cohen Residence.  
 
Thanks  
 

chimso onwuegbu      chimso@be-wow.com        cell 801.712.4078 

Right-click 
here to  
download 
pictures.  To  
help protect 
your privacy, 
Outlo ok 
prevented 
auto matic  
download of 
this pictu re  
from the  
In ternet.  

 
---------- Forwarded message ---------- 
From: Elizabeth Cohen <elizabeth.g.cohen@gmail.com> 
Date: Wed, Apr 19, 2017 at 7:29 PM 
Subject: Fwd: Window replication recommendation 
To: Alexander Cohen <alexander.cohen@usoc.org>, Chimso Onwuegbu <chimso@be-wow.com> 
 

 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Philip Kearns <philip@vintagewindows.com> 
Date: April 19, 2017 at 5:26:03 PM MDT 
To: "Elizabeth.G.Cohen@gmail.com" <Elizabeth.G.Cohen@gmail.com> 
Subject: Window replication recommendation 

 

  

Dear Elizabeth Cohen, 

  

After having seen the windows on 243 Daly Ave. Park City, UT 84060, I have concluded that the 
windows have suffered far too much exposure without maintenance to be salvageable. Any 
repairs done to these windows would not withstand the test of time and would not be something 
that we would invest in. My recommendation is to have these windows replicated. Our 
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replication process is traditional in style and construction and has been approved by Landmark 
Compliance in Salt Lake City. 

  

  

Thanks again, 

Phil Kearns 

  

American Heritage Window Rebuilders 

46 E Herbert Ave 

SLC, UT 84111 

801-359-6639 
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